ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE LABOR AND COVMERCE STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 11, 2010
2:06 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Joe Paskvan, Chair
Senat or Joe Thomas, Vice Chair
Senat or Kevi n Meyer

Senat or Con Bunde

MEMBERS ABSENT
Senat or Bettye Davis
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 227
"An Act relating to public accounting; and providing for an
effective date.”

MOVED SB 227 OQUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BILL NO 205
"An Act relating to the power of the Regulatory Comm ssion of
Al aska to fix rates after an investigation and hearing."

HEARD AND HELD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 227

SHORT TI TLE: PUBLI C ACCOUNTI NG
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(S) PASKVAN

01/ 19/ 10 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 19/ 10 (S) L&C, FIN
02/ 11/ 10 (S) L&C AT 2: 00 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

BILL: SB 205
SHORT TI TLE. RCA RATE CHANGE
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) W ELECHOASKI, FRENCH

01/ 19/ 10 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 8/ 10

01/ 19/ 10 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/19/10 (S) L&C, FIN

01/ 19/ 10 (S) SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE | NTRODUCED- REFERRAL S
01/ 19/ 10 (S) L&C, FIN

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -1- February 11, 2010



02/ 11/ 10 (S) L&C AT 2: 00 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
W TNESS REG STER

JAKE HAMBURG

Staff to Senator Paskvan

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Conmented on SB 227 for the sponsor.

JULI E OLSON, President
Al aska Soci ety of CPAs
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 227.

LI SA ROGERS
Al aska Soci ety of CPAs
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 227.

MAX MERTZ, CPA

Representing hinsel f

Juneau, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 227.

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of SB 205.

TI M MCCLOUD, President and General Manager
Al aska El ectric Light and power (AEL&P)
Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Opposed SB 205.

JAN W LSON, Comm ssi oner

Regul at ory Conmi ssion of Al aska (RCA)

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions on SB 205 and stated no
posi tion.

RI CH GAZAWAY, Staff

Regul at ory Conmi ssion of Al aska (RCA)

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions on SB 205 and stated no
posi tion.

MATT WALLACE

Al aska Public Interest Research G oup (AKPIRG
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 205.

SENATE L&C COW TTEE - 2- February 11, 2010



BOB GRI MM President and CEO
Al aska Power and Tel ephone
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Opposed SB 205.

PAT LUBY, Advocacy Director
AARP- Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 205.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

2:06: 28 PM

CHAI R JCE PASKVAN called the Senate Labor and Conmerce Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 2:06 p.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Bunde, Meyer, Thomas and Paskvan. Senator

Davi s was excused.

SB 227- PUBLI C ACCOUNTI NG

2:07:12 PM
CHAI R PASKVAN announced SB 227 to be up for consideration.

JAKE HAMBURG, staff to Senator Paskvan, sponsor of SB 227, said
that he and Senat or Paskvan worked closely with the State Board
of Public Accountancy and the Al aska Society of Certified Public
Accountants in developing this bill and it enjoys their full
support. He said SB 227 updates Al aska's uniform accountancy
statutes to keep up with today's business demands and the needs
of the accounting profession. Forty-five states have already
enacted sone version of this bill that sinply does three things.

The first is that it establishes nobility provisions to allow
licensed certified public accountants (CPAs) from other states
to practice certain functions within Al aska w thout unnecessary
filings, forns and fees. M. Hanburg explained that this wll
allow Alaska CPAs to practice in other states w thout the sane
hassl es due to reciprocity requirenents by sone of those states.

He said this provision allows consunmers or clients to receive
tinely services from CPAs best suited to the job regardl ess of
their location, wthout the hindrances of wunnecessary filings,
forms, and increased costs that do not protect the public
i nterest.

2: 09: 49 PM

SENATE L&C COW TTEE - 3- February 11, 2010



Second, this bill updates Al aska's uniform accountancy statutes
to allow for sinple majority ownership by CPAs of CPA firnms. The
accounting profession has changed over the past several years,
as has the <conposition of today's typical CPA firms, he
expl ai ned. Non- CPA professionals who enhance accountants'
abilities to serve their clients, such as |awers, conputer
information specialists or consultants, now work for accounting
firms. Additionally, nodern audits require input from and
participation by many different types of professions and
professionals in addition to CPA auditors. To naintain an
experienced nulti-disciplinary audit force, firns need to be
able to offer ownership to different types of professionals.
Owership can also be used to attract and retain talented
i ndi vidual s that would be invaluable to a CPA firm

MR. HAMBERG stated that conpetition for talented enployees is
nore intense than ever especially in an accounting firmand with
the current |aw non-CPA professionals cannot becone partners.
Al aska CPA firns can have a tougher tinme hiring and retaining
t hese non-CPAs because they often have little incentive to make
a long-termconmtnment to them

2:11: 07 PM

Third, he said, this bill enhances the board's ability to
protect the public's interest by directing it to investigate a
conplaint nade by the accountancy regulatory body of another
state. It adds a fair way to take corrective action regarding
ownership by nmaking it a basis for board action. It also
provides that persons wth practice privileges, out-of-state
permts, or out-of-state exenptions and legal entities that hire
individuals with practice privileges consent to the jurisdiction
and disciplinary authority of the board. He said it wll also
insure that CPA firnms in Alaska are able to provide the best
services to their clients and remain conpetitive wth their
peers from outside of Al aska.

2:12: 32 PM
SENATOR BUNDE said this seens to be a comn-sense inprovenent
of business and asked if he had heard of any "push-back."

MR. HAMBURG replied no.

2:13:14 PM

JULIE OLSON, President, Alaska Society of CPAs, said the Society
passed a resol ution supporting SB 227.

2:14: 10 PM

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -4- February 11, 2010



CHAI R PASKVAN asked if this does everything the Society wants it
to.

M5. OLSON replied yes.

2:14: 37 PM

SENATOR THOVAS asked what percent of the accounting firnms in
Al aska belong to the Society.

M5. OLSON replied a majority of the accounting firns here, and
the State Society has about 500 nenbers.

2:15: 26 PM
SENATOR THOVAS remarked that he didn't want to pass this |engthy
bill that seems innocuous and then have his phone "ring off the

hook" the next day about the |egislature giving opportunities to
out-of -state firns.

M5. COLSON said the Society made every effort to make sure all
the CPAs in the state are aware of this through their newsletter
and they hadn't heard of any opposition to it.

2:16: 09 PM

LI SA ROGERS, Al aska Society of CPAs, supported SB 227. She said
it aligns Al aska statutes with three provisions set forth in the
Uni form Accountancy Act, which is nodel legislation drafted by
the National Association of State Boards of Accountancy (NASBA)
and the Anmerican Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(AICPA). She said the NASBA represents the regulators and is an
organi zation to which the boards of accountancy in all I|icensing
jurisdictions in the country belong. The AICPA represents the
prof ession and sets forth the professional standards to which
all CPAs nust adhere. Although SB 227 is 21 pages long, it
acconplishes three things: mobility, uniform disciplinary
proceedings and a sinple majority CPA ownership of firms. Forty-
five other states have already passed this |egislation.

M5. ROCERS said they have spent over two years working on
drafting the legislation with the help of NASBA and AICPA. Both
the State Board of Public Accountancy and the Al aska Society of
CPAs have passed unani nous resolutions in support of |egislation
that acconplishes these objectives and she knows of no
opposition to it. She urged passing it quickly, so Al aska can be
in sync wwth the rest of the nation.

2:18: 25 PM

SENATE L&C COW TTEE - 5- February 11, 2010



MAX MERTZ, CPA, Juneau, said he has been on the Board of Public
Accountancy for six years, and was chair for four years ending
in 2009. It was during his term as chair that the nobility and
firm ownership idea cane to the state and this bill was
devel oped. He said the Board of Accountancy takes its m ssion of
regulating the accounting profession in Alaska and protecting
the public interest very seriously. One of the chief challenges
it has is to be able to effectively pursue |licensees from other
states that conme to Alaska but don't properly serve their
clients.

He explained that out-of-state practice beconmes nore comon-
place in the electronic age. Prior to the nmobility initiative in
2007, each state had its own rules for out-of-state |licensees to
provi de services in other states and for states to carry through
and enforce actions on Boards of Accountancy in other states.
This resulted in inefficient systens that are difficult to
navigate making further conpliance and enforcenent nearly
i npossi bl e.

Wth nobility, he said, the Al aska Board of Accountancy wll
gain automatic jurisdiction over all CPAs practicing in the
state. This wll enable the board to discipline out-of-state
| icensees whether they are registered in Al aska and |icensed or
not. The nobility bill can be likened to a driver's license that
will provide CPAs with nobility to practice in other states than
their hone state while retaining and strengthening the state
board's ability to protect the public interest. Certainly, it's
only successful if it's passed in all the states and now three
of the remaining five have legislation pending and the other two
expect to have legislation very shortly. Likewse, M. Mrtz
said he had heard of no opposition to the bill.

2:21:43 PM
CHAI R PASKVAN asked if this statute gives Alaska jurisdiction to
di sci pline potential violations of the standard in other states.

MR. MERTZ replied yes.

2:22:29 PM
CHAI R PASKVAN cl osed public testinony and noted the zero fisca
not e.

2:22:38 PM

SENATOR MEYER noved to report SB 227 from conmmttee wth
i ndi vi dual reconmmendations and the attached zero fiscal note.
There were no objections and it was so ordered.

SENATE L&C COW TTEE - 6- February 11, 2010



2:23:41 PM
At ease

2:26:42 PM
CHAI R PASKVAN cal | ed the neeting back to order at 2:26 p. m

SB 205- RCA RATE CHANGE

2:27:03 PM
CHAI R PASKVAN announced SB 205 to be up for consideration.

2:27:45 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI, sponsor of SB 205, said this bill tells
the RCA in statute that it my not conpensate a for-profit
public wutility for its negligent conduct, recklessness, or
intentional violation of the law. For-profit utilities are
operating nonopolies; therefore, if allowed to recoup from
reckl ess behavior, a for-profit utility has no incentive to be
efficient or to act as a reasonable or prudent conpany because
if a utility makes a mstake, the consumer can't go down the
street to another utility because they have a regulated
nmonopol y. This bill encourages efficiency and encourages
utilities to act in a reasonable and prudent manner that wl
ultimately keep costs down and protect the consuners of the
State of Alaska. He said SB 205 has a zero fiscal note.

SENATOR THOMVAS asked for an exanple of a case like this.

2:29:51 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI  answered that he knew of a highly
publici zed i nci dent, but essentially a conpany could

intentionally be violating the law, and under current RCA |aw
they could pass that cost on to the consuners.

SENATOR THOVAS asked if this bill related to situations in the
realm of maybe a conpany extended sonme utility lines and did
sl oppy work or used a product that wasn't for that application
and it failed; it would get replaced and then the conpany would
come back to the RCA who would then have the authority to deny
any increase in rates to consuners.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSBKI answered sonething |ike that; SB 205 is not
trying to penalize conpanies for making a mstake if it was
legitimate; they <could file with the RCA for it and be
conpensated. But if the company was truly acting negligently,

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -7- February 11, 2010



typically defined as breaching their duty which was the cause of
the damages that follow, then they wouldn’'t be able to recoup
those expenses. He couldn't think of many instances in the
American free enterprise system where conpanies can be
conpensated for their negligence |ike that.

2:32: 29 PM
SENATOR THOVAS asked what the utilities' recourse wuld be if
they were found to be negligent.

SENATOR W ELECHOAMSKI replied if the RCA ultimately determ nes
under this bill that there was negligence or recklessness for-
profit utilities would not be able to be conpensated from the
consuners. That noney woul d have to cone fromtheir profits.

SENATOR THOVAS asked if that decision could be taken to court.
SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI answer ed yes.
SENATOR BUNDE asked who nmakes the determni nation of reckless.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI answered the RCA, but he understands there
is aright to appeal that decision to the court.

SENATOR BUNDE asked if sonmeone nmekes a huge mistake and it nakes
the utility go bankrupt, is there sonething in place to nake
sure it continues operating.

SENATOR W ELECHOASKI answered that conpanies go bankrupt now,
but they just I|ook for another better conpany to continue
oper ati on.

SENATOR MEYER asked if reckl essness al r eady has sone
ram fications.

2:35:19 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI answered that nothing in |law says the RCA
can't allow a rate to conpensate a wutility for negligent

reckl ess conduct - and the RCA determnes what is just and
reasonable - so it could find that allowing a rate for
negl i gence was just and reasonable. This bill would prevent them

from doi ng so.
2:35:56 PM

CHAI R PASKVAN said current statute, AS 42.05.431(a), indicates
that the Commission can find that a rate demand or a practice

SENATE L&C COW TTEE - 8- February 11, 2010



af fecting t he rate is unj ust, unr easonabl e, undul y
discrimnatory or preferential. Is SB 205 addi ng anyt hi ng here?

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI answered yes; he thought it was. But the in
the specific case from which this issue stens, the RCA all owed
Enstar to collect on the backs of Southcentral consuners for
nmonths and nonths even though it was clearly negligent. They
even admtted it was negligent conduct. He didn't think the
| anguage is as clear as they would like; the facts of what has
been al |l owed al ready prove that.

CHAI R PASKVAN said he understood that a determ nation would be
comng out in a couple of weeks as to whether that collection
can be retained, and maybe it would be proper to defer this
i ssue until they know t he outcone.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI answered that a decision in that particular
case is expected on WMrch 1, but this is really about an
overarching principle. He explained that the RCA can cone out
and say this particular case is unjust or unreasonable, but they
can't nake law that wll protect consunmers in future cases.
\Wat ever happens to this bill wll have no bearing on that case;
it would not be ex post-facto.

2:39: 07 PM
SENATOR MEYER said he supported protecting consuners, but wanted
to know how far-reaching this bill would be. He asked if it was

going after the for-profit utilities that include ACS, GCl, and
AT&T and what it would do to M& that is owned by the City of
Anchor age.

SENATOR W ELECHOABKI answered that M.&P is not considered a for-
profit wutility; it is owned by a political subdivision. As he
was thinking this through, he concluded that it would be very
difficult to cover co-ops or conpanies that are owned by
political subdivisions because they have nowhere else to go for
t he conpensation. Chugach Electric Association, for instance, is
owned by all the ratepayers. The co-ops and conpanies that are
owned by political subdivisions are held in check by the
citizens who have a right in those cases to vote out the nenbers
of the boards or assenblies. For-profit conpanies, however, can
pay for m stakes out of their profits.

2:42: 41 PM

TIM MCCLOUD, President and GCeneral Mnager, Alaska Electric
Li ght and power (AEL&P) Juneau, opposed SB 205, because he said
it discrimnates against the investor-owned wutilities. If it

SENATE L&C COW TTEE - 9- February 11, 2010



included the other wutility structures they would be expressing
simlar concerns, because they all operate under the sane
regul atory principles.

MR. MCCLOUD said he is confident that the RCA would not allow a
utility, profit or non-profit, to receive conpensation under
existing regulations wunless it could denponstrate that the
rationale is just and reasonable. The proposed |anguage would
elimnate the RCA's discretion to rule on very conplex issues.
It could lead to higher utility rates by encouraging
unreasonable investnments in system redundancy, maintenance
operations, and inspections that a conpany m ght want to have to
protect thenselves from being considered negligent for a system
failure. For instance, he asked if wunder this bill a utility
could recover the cost of repair as a result of a heavy snow
storm or would it be negligent for not burying the l|lines even
t hough the investnent would result in a higher rate to the
customers.

2:45:13 PM
SENATOR BUNDE asked where AEL&P gets its noney and if it
provides a dividend to its investors.

MR. MCCLOUD answered that it pays a small dividend. WMst of
their profits go into repairs and upgrades to the existing
system - the same as a non-profit utility's would be used.

SENATOR BUNDE said under current |law, the public ends up paying,
but under this law it would just be another part of the public
that would end up paying, because with reduced profits there
woul d be reduced dividends and return on investnent.

MR. MCCLOUD said that is correct. It is inportant for utilities
of all types to be healthy, because the financing is critical to
mai ntaining | ow rates. The cost of borrow ng noney, which is how
t hey get their noney, could end going up very high.

2:47: 00 PM
SENATOR THOVAS asked if they generally self-perform on
interties.

MR. MCCLOUD replied that AEL&P is not an intertie, but generally
they do their own construction work on transmssion |ines.
Soneti mes they subcontract.

SENATOR THOVAS asked if he was concerned that this neasure would
make hi mresponsi bl e for soneone el se's work.

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -10- February 11, 2010



MR. MCCLOUD answered that he hadn't consi dered that.

CHAI R PASKVAN asked his current understanding of how the RCA
deals with reckl ess conduct.

MR. MCCLOUD answered that the RCA rules correctly on these
i ssues. A conpany could not be conpensated for intentionally
being reckless. He would hate to take away that discretion
because these cases are very conplicated.

2:49: 54 PM
CHAI R PASKVAN asked what the RCA experience and capacity is to
conduct hearings on reasonabl e practi ce.

JAN WLSON, Comm ssioners, Regulatory Conm ssion of Al aska
(RCA), answered that the RCA has conducted extensive hearings in
many proceedi ngs on those kinds of issues.

2:50: 52 PM
SENATOR BUNDE asked if this bill wwuld be a tool in their
endeavors.

M5. WLSON answered that the comm ssion had no position on this
bill.

SENATOR BUNDE asked if it would be a help or a hindrance to
their work.

M5. WLSON answered that the comm ssion takes its guidance from
statutes the |egislature passes and executes them in the best
way they can. Currently the conm ssion operates under the just
and reasonable standard, and the concept of cost-based rates
underlies that standard. However, she suggested that the just
and reasonabl e standard may not be a very good standard by which
to judge the kind of conduct this bill is trying to prohibit.

She added that a "prudent nanagenent” concept also underlies
utility rate making principles. Even if a utility spends noney
that is definitely for the service it is providing, but it does
so inprudently, then the comm ssion would normally not allow
t hose actions to be collected in rates.

SENATOR BUNDE asked if the comm ssion needs nore clarification
on t he standard.

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -11- February 11, 2010



M5. WLSON replied that the general rate making principles under
whi ch they now operate have always guided them since enactnent
of AS 42.05, but if the legislature wants to give them nore
speci fic guidance, the conmm ssion is capable of admnistering
it.

SENATOR BUNDE stated that the comm ssion's job is to protect the
consunmer and asked if they are able to do that now or do they
need this bill.

M5. WLSON replied that the conm ssion would have to have a
neeting to take an official position on it. She was speaking for
herself at that tine. She added that the inprudent standard has
a lot of precedent, but if the legislature wants to establish a
negl i gent standard they could adm nister that, too.

SENATOR BUNDE suggested that the comm ssion neet and take an
of ficial position.

M5. WLSON said they could certainly do that.

2:55:50 PM
SENATOR MEYER asked if soneone is intentionally negligent, would
that al so be inprudent.

M5. WLSON answered probably, but the inprudent standard is one
that says "a prudent manager under the sane circunstances at the
time the decision was made woul d not have made the decision that

lead to these costs"” - a little bit different than the negligent
st andar d.

2:56: 56 PM

SENATOR MEYER said the reason for this bill is to protect the

consuner from a for-profit wutility and the fact that the
consuner doesn't have a choice. He was concerned that going
after one kind of wutility would adversely inpact others. The
tel ephone industry, for instance, is very conpetitive and the
consuner has multiple choices.

2:58: 00 PM
RI CH GAZAWAY, Staff, Regulatory Comm ssion of Alaska (RCA), said
Senator Meyer was correct in that the telecom arena is

conpetitive in several narkets. How the carriers are rated
depends in large part on how conpetitive the market is and
whet her the conpetitor is the incunbent or the entrant.

2:59: 08 PM

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -12- February 11, 2010



MATT WALLACE, Alaska Public Interest Research Goup (AKPIRG,
said he supported SB 205 for two reasons. One is that conpanies
Wil | respond to financial I ncentives and two, st andard
conpetitive market forces don't apply to utilities. The
incentive in SB 205 provides additional protection for consuners
by prohibiting conpanies from putting their m stakes or reckless
behavi or on their backs.

3:01:33 PM

SENATOR BUNDE said in his view, one of the reasons for the high
cost of nedicine in this country is that providers practice
defensive nmedicine to avert lawsuits. Could sonmething like this
cause a lot of simlar defensive behavior by a utility conpany
with the unintended consequence that the rates go up for the
consuner - maybe doing nore harmthan good when that happens?

MR.  WALLACE answered that this situation is substantially

different than wth health care - nmainly because those
situations often have very large awards that are the result of
civil suits for malpractice. This bill would sinply prevent

conpani es from passing the costs of their negligence or reckless
behavi or on to consuners.

SENATOR THOVAS asked if he is <concerned that adding this
| anguage creates a different standard for non-profits versus
for-profits and another classifications of wutility that m ght
| ead to confusion.

MR. WALLACE answered no one can say for sure, and he wasn't as
concerned about that type of situation nostly for the reasons
outlined by Senator Welechowski. Qther co-op utility structures
tend to have ot her avenues for consunmers' voices.

3:07:06 PM
BOB GRIMM President and CEO, Al aska Power and Tel ephone, said
he viewed this as a reaction to a single incident that wll be

remedied by the RCA using existing statutes. This |egislation
while well-neaning, targets only one segnent of the utility, and
the electric industry is a very small mnority. It could
handi cap that segnment of the industry and beconme a potential
barrier for an 1QU to enter into that segnment of the industry.

He was also concerned that regulatory administrative law is a
body with precedent that goes back many years and is practiced
in every state of the union. SB 205 conmes up with a renedy to a
situation which he was sure had occurred in the past in the
practice of public utility admnistrative law, and was dealt

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -13- February 11, 2010



with in an effective manner. He believed this is overreacting to
a single instance.

3:10: 13 PM

Finally, M. Gimmsaid that by regulation, the RCA's powers and
duties are to be deliberately construed by the courts; this
means when they make a decision they have a higher standing than
a normal statute under the law. Al so, under state |law, the RCA
has the ability to levy civil penalties and fines upon public
utilities that exhibit repeated behavior that mght be at the
root of this proposed legislation. Finally, Al aska Power and
Tel ephone is an investor-owned utility; the largest part of
their equity is owned by their own enployees. So, the actual
burden for any hardship, due or undue under this change, would
be borne by them

He directed this question to the sponsor - if any other state
has this specific language or provides specific guidance to
regul atory agencies dealing wth public wutility regulation
simlar to the RCA

3:11:42 PM

PAT LUBY, Advocacy Director, AARP, supported SB 205. He said if
a negligent error is made, the conpany should be responsible -
for instance, |like Toyota. Their profits will be lower and their
shareholders wll lose sonme of their profits, but Toyota's
custoners are not responsible for the cost of the error. That is
how it should be for Alaska utilities. He said the RCA should be
enpowered to hold the party who namde the negligent error
responsi bl e and the custoner should be held harn ess.

CHAI R PASKVAN t hanked him and finding no further testinony, held
SB 205. He said he would reopen public testinmony later if
needed.

3:14: 09 PM

There being no further business to come before the commttee, he
adj ourned the neeting at 3:14 p. m

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -14- February 11, 2010



